
Standards Committee 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Standards Committee to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 19 March 2019

TIME: 2.30 pm

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  To Approve the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8 November 2018 (Pages 1 - 4)

4  Annual Report of the Standards Committee 

An Excel spreadsheet showing member training offered and 
undertaken between January 2018 and February 2019 is circulated as 
a separate appendix.

(Pages 5 - 16)

5  Council's Draft Response to the Best Practice Recommendations 
from a Review by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 

The full review runs to over 100 pages and can be accessed at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-
standards-in-public-life

(Pages 17 - 34)

6  Verbal Update on the Current Review of the Constitution 

7  Committee Members' Views on the Arrangements for Dealing 
with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct 

8  Verbal Update on the Recruitment and Selection of (an) 
Additional Independent Person(s) 

9  Work Programme (Pages 35 - 40)

Public Document Pack

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life


Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

8 November 2018 

Meeting commenced:  2:45 p.m.
Meeting ended: 3:40 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillors Ferguson, K Garrido, Lewis, Mullen, Turner and John Walsh

Nicolé Jackson

IN ATTENDANCE: Miranda Carruthers-Watt (City Solicitor and (Monitoring Officer)), 
Carol Eddleston (Senior Democratic Services Advisor) and Karen 
Lucas (Principal Democratic Services Advisor)

1. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT CHAIR

RESOLVED THAT: Nicolé Jackson be appointed as the independent chair of the 
Standards Committee, with the appointment being re-confirmed on an annual basis.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Hinds and Warmisham.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors K Garrido and Turner declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 but, 
under the Code of Conduct for Members, were permitted to remain in the meeting for the 
duration of the discussion.

4. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 April 2018 were approved as a correct record.

5. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE LAST  MEETING 

The Monitoring Officer informed the committee that she had identified two possible 
candidates for the outstanding co-opted independent member position on the committee 
and would approach them shortly to gauge their interest and suitability.

The Independent Chair took the opportunity to clarify the distinction between the role of 
co-opted Independent Member and that of the Independent Person. 

Co-opted Independent Members were non-voting, non-elected members of the 
committee who were appointed by the committee. The Localism Act 2011 removed the 
legal requirement for Standards Committees to co-opt independent members but it was 
still considered to be good practice.

Independent Persons, whose appointment had to be formally approved by full Council, 
were not members of the Standards Committee and would not be expected to attend 
committee meetings. The Monitoring Officer was required to seek the views of an 
Independent Person and take those into account before making a decision on an 
allegation that she had decided to investigate and could also seek their views when 
deciding on how to deal with a new allegation. Independent Persons also now had to 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

advise the Council prior to any vote being taken on whether to dismiss a ‘Protected 
Officer’ – the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer.  

6. TO AGREE THE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF 
ONE OR MORE INDEPENDENT PERSON(S)

The Monitoring Officer reported that one of the two current Independent Persons had 
recently resigned from the role following a change in his professional circumstances. The 
committee was now being asked to authorise the Monitoring Officer to make the 
necessary arrangements for filling the vacancy and also to consider whether it might be 
appropriate to increase the total number of Independent Persons from two. 

The Monitoring Officer confirmed that she had found the contribution of the Independent 
Persons extremely helpful to her when considering allegations of breaches of the Code 
of Conduct for Members and would welcome an opportunity to increase the available 
pool of Independent Persons to three if the members of the committee were agreeable.  

RESOLVED; THAT, the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make arrangements for the 
recruitment and selection of two new Independent Persons for approval by a majority of 
full Council.

7. CONSIDERATION OF FIRST DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME AND LIST OF 
DOCUMENTS WITHIN THE REMIT OR OF INTEREST TO THE COMMITTEE

The committee considered a first draft work programme for the next 12 months and 
noted that there were several items proposed for the next meeting which were linked to 
the production of the Annual Governance Statement which was submitted to the External 
Auditors in May as part of the Council’s Statement of Accounts. It was also noted that the 
next meeting was scheduled to take place when campaigning would be underway in 
earnest for the 2 May elections and that consideration might need to be given to re-
scheduling the meeting to an earlier week.

The list of documents within the remit of/or of interest to the committee included 
guidance for members on social media which was currently being reviewed by the 
Communications team and, once updated, would be incorporated into the Constitution. 
Members asked for this guidance to be circulated prior to campaigning beginning in 
earnest for the 2019 elections.

Members noted that there were clear links between some of the documents listed and 
the work of the Member Development Group, including in identifying training 
requirements and monitoring attendance at training sessions. This in turn led to a wider 
discussion about the level of attendance at committee meetings, as well as at training 
sessions, and whether there could/should be any consequences or sanctions for 
members who regularly failed to attend what they would be expected to attend.

It was acknowledged that members who were newly appointed to quasi-judicial 
committees could not take up their seats and vote at those committees until they had 
undergone the mandatory training and it was agreed that a report would be brought back 
to the next meeting to review members’ attendance at training.

RESOLVED, THAT:

(1) The draft Work Programme be approved,

Page 2



Page | 3 

(2) The revised Social Media – Guidance for Members be circulated to all members once 
available, 

(3) Consideration be given to bringing forward the meeting currently scheduled for 28 
March 2019, and

(4) A report be brought to the next meeting outlining member attendance at training 
sessions.

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the ground 
that it involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in the paragraphs 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

9. MONITORING OFFICER DECISION FOLLOWING INITIAL ASSESSMENT OF AN 
ALLEGED BREACH OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

Councillors K Garrido and Turner declared a personal interest in this item but, under the 
Code of Conduct for Members, were permitted to remain in the meeting for the duration 
of the discussion.

The Monitoring Officer presented the report which outlined the decision that she had 
taken following the initial assessment of an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct for 
Members.

The committee was mindful of the limited range of sanctions open to local authorities 
following a breach of the code but had mixed views about how this particular case had 
been concluded.

RESOLVED: THAT,

(1) The Monitoring Officer’s decision following initial assessment of an alleged breach of 
the Code of Conduct for Members be noted,

(2) The Monitoring Officer agree particular training requirements for the member 
concerned with the Equalities Team, and

(3) The Monitoring Officer work with the Member Development Group on the 
introduction of a programme of initial and ongoing diversity training for all members.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

TO

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

ON

19 MARCH 2019

TITLE: STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1) To consider this annual report summarising the work undertaken in the last 
year by the Standards Committee and by the Council’s Monitoring Officer and 
her staff to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by elected and 
co-opted members.

2) To consider whether this report should be presented to full Council for 
assurance as to how the authority is fulfilling its statutory duty to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This first annual report of the Standards Committee provides an overview of the work 
undertaken by the Standards Committee and the Council’s Monitoring Officer from 1 
March 2018 to 28 February 2019 in relation to promoting and maintaining high 
standards of conduct by elected and co-opted members. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Salford City Council Constitution, Code of Conduct 
for Elected Members.

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



DETAILS:

1. Introduction

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to the committee an annual report 
relating to matters within the committee’s terms of reference. It presents the 
work carried out by the Monitoring Officer and her staff to support the 
committee throughout the year. It also demonstrates the ways in which the 
authority has fulfilled its statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards 
of conduct.

1.2 This is the first annual report of the committee since it was reinvigorated in 
2017 and members are asked to consider whether they wish to present the 
report to full Council so that full Council can receive assurances as to how the 
authority’s duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by elected 
and co-opted members is being discharged.

2 Main issues

Role and functions

2.1 The Standards Committee has the following role and functions:

 To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by the elected City 
Mayor, councillors, co-opted members and church and parent governor 
representatives.

 To assist the elected City Mayor, councillors, co-opted members and 
church and parent governor representatives to observe the Council’s Code 
of Conduct for Members.

 To advise the council on the adoption, revision or replacement of the 
council’s Code of Conduct for Members and the council’s Arrangements for 
dealing with Complaints that council Members have failed to comply with 
the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members (‘the council’s Arrangements’).

 To monitor the operation of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members 
and the Council’s Arrangements.

 To advise, train or arrange to train the elected City Mayor, councillors and 
co-opted members and church and parent governor representatives on 
matters relating to the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members and other 
issues relating to Standards and Conduct.

 To determine in accordance with the council’s Arrangements whether the 
elected City Mayor or a council member has failed to comply with the 
Council’s Code of Conduct for members and, if so, to determine what 
action (if any) to take.

 To delegate such of the council’s powers as can be delegated to take 
decisions in respect of a Council Member (including the elected City 
Mayor) who is found on a hearing held in accordance with the council’s Page 6



Arrangements to have failed to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct 
for Members (‘the Subject Member’).

 To grant dispensations from section 31(4) of the Localism Act 2011 (after 
consultation with one of the Council’s Independent Persons) if having had 
regard to all relevant circumstances, the Standards Committee considers 
that granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the 
council’s area, or considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation.

 To determine appeals against the Monitoring Officer’s decision on the grant 
of dispensations.

2.2 Role and functions of the Monitoring Officer in supporting the Standards 
Committee and in promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct 

 To act as the council’s Proper Officer to receive complaints that the elected 
City Mayor or council members have failed to comply with the council’s 
Code of Conduct for members.

 To determine, after consultation with the Independent Person and in 
accordance with the council’s arrangements for dealing with Complaints 
that the elected City Mayor or council members have failed to comply with 
the council’s Code of Conduct for members (‘the council’s arrangements’) 
whether to reject, informally resolve or investigate a complaint.

 To seek informal resolution of complaints that the elected City Mayor or 
council members have failed to comply with the council’s Code of Conduct 
for Members wherever practicable.

 To refer decisions dealing with a complaint against the elected City Mayor 
or a council member to the Standards Committee in exceptional 
circumstances. 

 To arrange for the appointment of an Investigating Officer to investigate a 
complaint where the Monitoring Officer (in consultation with an 
Independent Person) determines that a complaint merits formal 
investigation.

 To issue guidance to be followed by an Investigating Officer on the 
investigation of complaints.

 To determine, after consultation with an Independent Person and in 
accordance with the council’s arrangements, to confirm an Investigating 
Officer’s finding of no failure to comply with the council’s Code of Conduct 
for members.

 Where an Investigating Officer’s report finds that the Subject Member has 
failed to comply with the council’s Code of Conduct for Members, to 
determine, after consultation with the Independent Person and in 
accordance with the council’s arrangements, either to seek a local 
resolution or to send a matter for local hearing.Page 7



 To grant dispensations from section 31(4) of the Localism Act 2011 if she 
considers that without the dispensation:
 the number of persons prohibited by section 31(4) of the Localism Act 

2011 from participating in any particular business would be so great a 
proportion of the body transacting the business as to impede the 
transaction of the business; or

 each member of the council’s Cabinet would be prohibited by section 
31(4) of the Localism Act  2011 from participating in any particular 
business to be transacted by the council’s cabinet; or

 the representation of different political groups on the body transacting 
any particular business would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome 
of any vote relating to the business.

 To establish and maintain the Council’s Register of Members’ Interests. 

Standards Committee membership 

2.3 The Standards Committee membership is confirmed annually at full Council in 
May and elected members are appointed in accordance with the principles of 
political balance. The current membership is six members of the Labour Group 
and two members of the Conservative Group.

2.4 The Standards Committee appointed co-opted independent member Nicolé 
Jackson as chair at its meeting on 8 November 2018 and agreed that the 
appointment would be re-confirmed on an annual basis. It is proving 
challenging to identify a second independent member for co-option onto the 
committee but efforts to do so will continue.

Independent Persons

2.5 The Localism Act 2011 provides that the views of an Independent Person 
must “be sought, and taken into account” by the Council “before it makes a 
decision on an allegation that it has decided to investigate”.  In addition the 
Localism Act provides that the views of an Independent Person may be 
sought by the Council when deciding how to deal with a new allegation. More 
recently the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015 introduced an additional formal statutory role for 
Independent Persons, requiring them to work together as a Panel in advising 
the Council prior to any vote on whether to dismiss the Council’s Head of Paid 
Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer, (‘Protected Officers’).

2.6 Independent Persons are not members of the Standards Committee but can 
be invited to attend if the committee considers it appropriate but at least one 
Independent Person must attend a Hearings Panel.

2.7 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011 full Council previously appointed 
Robert Cowan and Shazia Nazir as Independent Persons. The Monitoring 
Officer has worked closely with both of them in assessing how to deal with 
allegations and highly values their contribution to date. In November 2018 Mr 
Cowan resigned from the role and the Standards Committee agreed that the 
Monitoring Officer should take steps to recruit and select up to two additional 
Independent Persons who will ultimately be appointed by full Council. This Page 8



process is on-going, with the closing date for applications being 22 February. 
The advertisement resulted in number of strong applications and a verbal 
update will be provided at the meeting. 

Standards Committee meetings

2.6 The Standards Committee meets on a quarterly basis and has approved an 
annual work programme.

2.7 Hearings Panels (effectively sub-committees of the Standards Committee) 
meet as and when required to consider allegations of breaches of the Code of 
Conduct for Members. The first such panel met in late February.

Member training relating to the Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards

2.9 Specific training on the Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards was delivered 
by the Monitoring Officer on 31st July 2018 and 18th September 2018 and the 
following members attended:

K Garrido, R Garrido, Burch, McIntyre, Fletcher, Nkurunziza, Taylor, John 
Walsh, Kelly, Lancaster, G Reynolds, Hinds, Ferguson, Boshell, Lewis, 
Bellamy, Collinson, Sharpe, Weir, Cllrs Bentham, Dickman, Edwards, Joan 
Walsh, Clarke and Shazia Nazir.

At the last meeting Standards Committee members requested information 
about member training undertaken over the last 12 months. The attached 
spreadsheet outlines all of the training that has been available to members 
over the last 12 months, the level of attendance and cost where appropriate. 
This detail will hopefully provide assurance that individual members are 
committed to attending the mandatory & other panel-specific training sessions 
which are relevant to them, as well as more general sessions which are open 
to all members.  

At its meeting in May the Member Development Working Group is scheduled 
agree a Member Development Framework which will be integral to preparation 
for the member induction programme following the all-out elections in 2020. 
More information on this will be brought back to future meetings of the 
Standards Committee.

Register of Interests

2.10 The Localism Act 2011 places a duty on the Monitoring Officer to establish 
and maintain a register of interest of members and co-opted members of the 
authority.

2.11 The Monitoring Officer has supported members of the authority in meeting 
their obligations to notify any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of 
either their election or of a change in the circumstances relating to such 
interests.

All members are asked to complete a new declaration of interest form every 
May after the elections so that Member Services can ensure that all members 
have an up to date form every 12 months. Additionally reminders are sent out Page 9



to all members every three months to ask them to review their registers and 
update their declaration if there have been any changes.

Sensitive interests

2.12 Section 32(2) of the Localism Act 2011 allows for interests which are 
considered to be sensitive to be withheld from a Member’s Register of Interest. 
The decision as to whether to withhold such an interest from the public register 
is made by the Monitoring Officer. Permission to withhold an interest may only 
be granted in cases where disclosure of the details in an interest could lead to 
a member or co-opted member being subject to violence or intimidation – it is 
particularly relevant that that threat or potential threat would be substantially 
contributed to as a result of those interests appearing on the members’ public 
register.

2.13 Two permissions to withhold interests have been granted by the Monitoring 
Officer and are in place. Permission has been granted for withholding details 
of home addresses for two elected members, with the rational for the 
permission being due to a threat of violence against the member or their family 
from a member of the public.

2.14 The Monitoring Officer intends to further highlight the provisions of the 
Localism Act 2011 relating to sensitive interests to all new and returning 
members after the 2019 elections and to review the granted permissions 
currently in place.

Dispensations

2.15 If a member wishes to apply for a dispensation to allow them to take part in a 
meeting with a disclosable pecuniary interest they must submit a written 
application to the Monitoring Officer who will then consult with the Standards 
Committee about the application. There have been no such applications in the 
period covered by this report.

The Code of Conduct for Members and the Arrangements for Dealing 
with Allegations of Breaches of the Code

2.17 No amendments have been made to the Code of Conduct for Members which 
was approved in 2012. The latest review of Local Government Ethical 
Standards by the Committee on Standards in Public Life, about which more 
detail is provided below and in a separate report to this meeting, identifies 
considerable variation in the length, quality and clarity of codes of conduct and 
concludes that many codes fail to address adequately important areas of 
behaviour such as social media use and bullying and harassment. It makes a 
recommendation that the Local Government Association should create an 
updated model code of conduct in consultation with representative bodies of 
councillors and officers of all tiers of local government. The Standards 
Committee will be kept informed of any developments in this regard.

2.18 At its meeting on 5 April 2018 the Standards Committee approved for the first 
time a suite of procedure and guidance documents for dealing with allegations 
of breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members. 

Page 10



 Arrangements for dealing with allegations of failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct

 Complaints procedure flowchart
 Assessment criteria checklist for allegations of breaches of the Code of 

Conduct for Members
 Guidance on investigation of complaints
 Introduction to the procedures for the hearing of allegations of breaches of 

the Code of Conduct for Members
 The pre-hearing process
 Hearing procedures
 Protocol to be followed in Hearings Panels
 Questions to be considered by the Hearings Panel when deciding upon a 

sanction

2.19 These procedures and guidance documents were very much based on those 
of neighbouring local authorities in the spirit of ‘not reinventing the wheel’. 
They have now been more or less fully tested in this council over the last 12 
months and it is considered that a review is now timely. The committee’s work 
programme includes provision for the establishment of a member working 
group to undertake this review and members will be asked to give their initial 
feedback on their view of the arrangements elsewhere on the agenda.

The Committee on Standards in Public Life

2.20 In January of this year the Committee on Standards in Public Life presented to 
the Prime Minister its 20th report on the subject of ethical standards in local 
government. The report was based on the committee’s review of the current 
local government ethical standards framework and whether the framework 
was conducive to promoting and maintaining the high standards of conduct 
expected by the public.

2.21 The review had shown that the vast majority of councillors and officers wanted 
to maintain the highest standards of conduct in their own authority. However, a 
minority of councillors engaged in bullying or harassment or other highly 
disruptive behaviour. The review had also identified a number of risks and 
deemed that the current rules around conflicts of interest, gifts and hospitality 
were inadequate and that the increase complexity of local government 
decision-making was putting governance under strain. The challenge therefore 
was to maintain a system which served the best instincts of councillors whilst 
addressing unacceptable behaviour by a minority and guarding against 
potential corporate standards risks. The evidence collected in the review 
supported the retention of local arrangements but identified a need for more 
robust safeguards to strengthen the local system.

2.22 The report made a number of recommendations, aimed primarily at 
government, which would require legislative changes and also identified a 
number of ‘best practice’ recommendations for local authorities which the 
committee considered that any local authority could and should implement. 
The recommendations would enable councillors to be held to account 
effectively and would enhance the fairness and transparency of the standards 
process. 

Page 11



2.23 The Monitoring Officer has reviewed the best practice recommendations and 
outlined this council’s position in relation to each in a separate report to this 
meeting.

Complaint handling

2.24 Over the last 12 months the committee received information in relation to 
alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members and a summary of the 
allegations and their outcome is set out below.

2.25 Members are reminded that there are three potential stages through which an 
allegation may proceed:

Stage 1: Initial Assessment – the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 
Council’s Independent Person, decides whether to reject it, seek informal 
resolution of the matter or refer it for formal investigation.

Stage 2: Where an allegation is referred for investigation, the Monitoring 
Officer appoints an Investigating Officer to investigate the matter.

Stage 3: Where the Investigating Officer’s final report concludes that there is 
sufficient evidence of a breach of the Code of Conduct for Members, the 
Monitoring Officer consults with the Independent Person before either seeking 
a local resolution to the matter or convening a Hearings Panel to determine 
the matter.

2.26 The Monitoring Officer has received 11 complaints about elected or co-opted 
members between 1 March 2018 and 28 February 2019.

2.27 A summary of each is provided below but 9 have been concluded, 2 cases are 
still open. 4 were upheld, 4 were not upheld and 1 was partially upheld. 

Complaints Summary: Decisions on Allegations made between 1 March 2018 
and 28 February 2019

Reference 
Number

Complaint 
made by

Nature of 
complaint Details Outcome Outcome details Open / 

Closed

CAMS-015-
33844046-2

Other 
member

Members 
breach of 
code of 
conduct

Hostile comments 
made about the 
complainant on an 
email to all 
members and some 
officers

Upheld

Apology originally requested 
from member.  Complaint then 
went to Standards Committee 
and was agreed that, as the 
member had left the authority, 
the complaint should be closed.

Closed

CAMS-015-
33850855-3

Community 
committee 
member

Members 
breach of 
code of 
conduct

Inappropriate 
response given to a 
committee member 
at a community 
meeting

Upheld Apology made by member to 
complainant, who accepted. Closed

Page 12



CAMS-015-
33860883-5

Community 
committee 
member

Problem 
with the 

attitude or 
behaviour 

of the 
Councillor

States an email 
sent to the 
Community 
Committee included 
untrue statements, 
and calls the 
complainants 
reputation into 
question.

Upheld Apology letter from member sent 
to complainant. Closed

CAMS-015-
33872640-5

Member of 
the public

Problem 
with the 

attitude or 
behaviour 

of the 
Councillor

Complaint states 
member showed 
biased behaviour in 
a planning meeting 
and also acted in a 
rude manner when 
speaking

Not 
Upheld

Monitoring officer met with 
complainant and resolved the 
issue.

Closed

CAMS-015-
33873882-6 Other

Failure of 
the council 
to achieve 
expected 
quality / 

standards

Complaint about 
member not acting 
impartially in 
relation to a 
planning application 
whilst being the 
Chair of the 
Planning Panel

Not 
upheld 

Ongoing. Monitoring office 
corrected complaint that the 
member was not the chair of the 
planning panel but Lead 
Member for Planning and 
Sustainable Development and 
sits as a member of the planning 
panel.  Complaint considered at 
a Hearings Panel sub-committee 
on 28 February

Closed

CAMS-015-
33879115-3

Member of 
the public

Unhappy 
with the 

Council's 
policy or 

application 
of policy

Complaint mainly 
about issues with a 
planning application 
but also stated a 
councillor had 
intervened with the 
planning process 
on behalf of the 
applicant.

 

Ongoing. Currently no further 
correspondence from 
complainant on the matter 
relating to the member and why 
they believe they were in the 
wrong.  Complaint also included 
issues with a planning 
application which were 
addressed at Stage 1.

Open

CAMS-015-
33890754-1

Member of 
the public

Problem 
with the 

attitude or 
behaviour 

of the 
Councillor

Complaint about 
text messages 
received from 
member

Not 
Upheld

Very brief details given in 
original online complaint. 
Complainant contacted for 
further information but never 
responded so complaint closed.

Closed

CAMS-015-
33939627-4

Other 
members

Members 
breach of 
code of 
conduct

Complaint 
regarding 
comments made in 
a post put on social 
media by member

Upheld

Apology given to other members 
but this was not accepted, so 
complaint taken to Standards 
Committee. 

Closed

CAMS-015-
33942961-5

Member of 
the public

Members 
breach of 
code of 
conduct

Complaint was 
about member not 
contacting back 
after 
correspondence 
sent regarding a 
constituent issue.

Not 
Upheld

Member asked to contact 
resident to discuss query. Closed

Page 13



CAMS-015-
33985470-5

Member of 
the public

Unhappy 
with the 

Council's 
policy or 

application 
of policy

Complaint made 
about issues 
regarding a 
planning application 
but also specifically 
about the conduct 
of the chair of the 
planning panel

Partially 
upheld

Complaint resolved at Stage 2.  
Confirmed all panel members 
had undergone training and that 
the monitoring officer 
investigated how the panel was 
conducted and found it to be 
fair.  Learning taken:                                                                                        
• Review the practise of pre-
application discussions in the 
light of the Local Government 
Association guidance.
• Improve the guidance available 
on the Council’s website.
• Ensure training for Panel 
members is maintained.
• Explore how Planning Panel 
meetings may be streamed live.

Closed

CAMS-015-
33998410-3

Member of 
the public

Members 
breach of 
code of 
conduct

Complaint made 
about member 
blocking off parking 
spaces at an event 
held by Salford 
Lad's Club

Not 
Upheld

Advised at the time that the 
Councillor was not acting in 
capacity as a councillor but as a 
volunteer, so complaint not 
upheld. 

Closed

Complaints to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

2.28 Complaints to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (the 
Ombudsman) tend to be complaints made by members of the public about the 
quality of services delivered by the authority and are ordinarily not directly 
related to member conduct.

2.29 For the year 01 March 2018 to 28 February 2019 49 complaints were made to 
the Ombudsman about the Council. This compares with 44 complaints being 
made against the council in the previous 12 month period. The number of 
complaints has increased slightly in recent years but it should be pointed out 
that:

 The numbers are still low
 It is understood that there is a national picture of complaints 

being on the rise.

Of these 49 complaints, 14 related to Benefits and Council Tax, 7 to 
Environmental Services, 4 related to Planning and Development, 18 related to 
Adult and Children’s Services, 5 related to Parking Services, 1 related to 
Elected Members.

Of these 49 complaints, 36 are now closed and 13 are still open.

Of the 36 that were closed the LGO advised us that they would not be 
investigating 33 of the complaints either because they had not exhausted our 
internal complaints procedures (premature complaint) or there was insufficient 
evidence of fault by the council that could warrant an investigation. 

3 of the complaints were fully investigated and 2 were not upheld as no fault 
with the council was found, 1 was upheld and the council were advised of 
suggested remedies by the LGO.

Page 14



KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Council Constitution, Code of Conduct for Members, 
Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for 
Members.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: There are no implications 
for equality and diversity arising from this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: The arrangements described within this report provide 
assurance that Salford City Council, individual members and the Monitoring Officer 
are complying with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011. The work undertaken 
by this committee, and the Monitoring Officer and her staff, ensures that the 
arrangements are reviewed as and when appropriate and remain up to date and fit 
for purpose, thereby minimising the risk of breaching the statutory requirements.

In relation to complaints against members the Monitoring Officer has considered the 
information above and does not consider that there are any adverse trends in the 
types of complaints received.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: These are contained within the body of the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There are no financial implications arising from this 
report.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: There are no procurement implications arising 
from this report.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: There are no HR implications arising from this 
report.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Miranda Carruthers-Watt TEL NO: 0161 793 3620

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  N/A

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

TO 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

ON 

19 MARCH 2019

TITLE:  Salford City Council response to the Best Practice Recommendations of the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life on the Subject of Ethical Standards in Local 
Government

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

To consider and comment on the Monitoring Officer’s draft response to the 
recommendations of the Committee on Standards in Public Life on the subject of 
ethical standards in local government.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

In January of this year the Committee on Standards in Public Life presented to the 
Prime Minister its 20th report on the subject of ethical standards in local government. 
The report was based on the committee’s review of the current local government 
ethical standards framework and whether the framework was conducive to promoting 
and maintaining the high standards of conduct expected by the public.

The report made a number of recommendations, aimed primarily at government, 
which would require legislative changes and also identified a number of ‘best 
practice’ recommendations for local authorities which the committee considered that 
any local authority could and should implement.

The Monitoring Officer has reviewed the best practice recommendations and outlined 
this council’s position in relation to each. Members are invited to consider and 
comment on the Monitoring Officer’s draft response.

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



2

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Local Government Ethical Standards – A Review by 
the Committee on Standards in Public Life.

KEY DECISION:  NO

DETAILS:

1.1 In January of this year the Committee on Standards in Public Life presented to 
the Prime Minister its 20th report on the subject of ethical standards in local 
government. The report was based on the committee’s review of the current 
local government ethical standards framework and whether the framework 
was conducive to promoting and maintaining the high standards of conduct 
expected by the public.

1.2 The review showed that the vast majority of councillors and officers wanted to 
maintain the highest standards of conduct in their own authority. However, a 
minority of councillors engaged in bullying or harassment or other highly 
disruptive behaviour. The review also identified a number of risks and deemed 
that the current rules around conflicts of interest, gifts and hospitality were 
inadequate and that the increase complexity of local government decision-
making was putting governance under strain. The challenge therefore was to 
maintain a system which served the best instincts of councillors whilst 
addressing unacceptable behaviour by a minority and guarding against 
potential corporate standards risks. The evidence collected in the review 
supported the retention of local arrangements but identified a need for more 
robust safeguards to strengthen the local system.

1.3 The report made a number of recommendations, aimed primarily at 
government, which would require legislative changes and also identified a 
number of ‘best practice’ recommendations for local authorities which the 
committee considered that any local authority could and should implement. 
The recommendations would enable councillors to be held to account 
effectively and would enhance the fairness and transparency of the standards 
process. 

1.4 Members will see from the attached table that the GM authority Chief Legal 
Officers group is working collectively on the recommendations with the aim of 
achieving a consistent regional approach. Standards Committee will be invited 
to contribute to and comment on emerging developments.

1.5 The Monitoring Officer has reviewed the best practice recommendations and 
outlined this council’s position in relation to each in the attached table. 
Members are invited to consider and comment on the Monitoring Officer’s draft 
response. Members’ views are particularly sought in response to 
recommendations 5 (financial threshold for declarations of gifts/hospitality) and 
14 (separate bodies created by / owned by the council).

Page 18



3

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Council Constitution, Code of Conduct for Members

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: There are no implications 
for equality and diversity arising from this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium - levels of conduct and lack of respect can attract 
adverse comment in public media and risk affecting the overall reputation of the 
council.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Section 27 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 (‘the 2011 Act’) 
places a duty on the Council to promote and maintain high standards of conduct 
amongst its members and co-opted members.

In discharging its duty the Council must under section 27(2) of the 2011 Act in 
particular adopt a code of conduct dealing with the conduct that is expected of 
members and co-opted members of the authority when they are acting in that 
capacity. 

The Council has also put in place Arrangements for dealing with allegations of failure 
to comply with its code of conduct (the Arrangements’). 

The Council will comply with any relevant new legislation which may emerge 
following the government’s consideration of the recommendations from the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There are no financial implications arising from this 
report.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: There are no procurement 
implications arising from this report.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: There are no HR implications arising from this 
report. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Miranda Carruthers-Watt TEL NO: 0161 793 3620

Page 19



4

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  N/A

Page 20



SALFORD CITY COUNCIL DRAFT RESPONSE TO THE BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN 
PUBLIC LIFE

Recommendation Salford City Council draft response

1 Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and 
harassment in codes of conduct. These should include a 
definition of bullying and harassment, supplemented with a 
list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a 
definition

The GM authority Chief Legal Officers group is working collectively on 
this with the aim of achieving a consistent regional approach. The 
group is mindful though that one of the CSPL Recommendations to 
central government is that the Local Government Association should 
create an updated model code.

2 Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct 
requiring councillors to comply with any formal standards 
investigation, and prohibiting trivial or malicious allegations 
by councillors

 As above.

3 Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each 
year and regularly seek, where possible, the views of the 
public, community organisations and neighbouring authorities

The Monitoring Officer regularly reviews the code in light of standards 
related matters that have occurred throughout the year, with particular 
consideration as to whether there are any emerging themes in 
allegations received which would warrant a strengthening of any 
aspects of the code.

4 An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both 
councillors and the public, in a prominent position on a 
council’s website and available in council premises

Links to the Code of Conduct for Members and Registers of Members' 
Interests can be found on the Council's website. 

5 Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality 
register at least once per quarter, and publish it in an 
accessible format, such as CSV

Members’ Services issue a bi-monthly reminder to all members of their 
obligations to update their gifts and hospitality register, together with a 
copy of the relevant form. 

The threshold for declarations at Salford City Council is £100 and to 
date no member has submitted a completed form. The threshold in 
some local authorities is set at £25 and with this in mind the Standards 
Committee may consider it appropriate to review this Council’s 
threshold.

P
age 21

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/code-of-conduct/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/code-of-conduct/


Recommendation Salford City Council draft response

6 Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public 
interest test against which allegations are filtered

 The Monitoring Officer currently assesses all allegations received 
against the attached checklist which concludes with a question about 
whether investigating the complaint is in the public interest, a good use 
of public resources and proportionate. 

The GM Chief Legal Officers group will collectively review how they 
filter allegations with a view to establishing a consistent approach. 

7 Local authorities should have access to at least two 
Independent Persons

One of Salford City Council’s two Independent Persons resigned in 
November 2018. A recruitment process is currently underway to recruit 
up to two additional Independent Persons. 

8 An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to 
undertake a formal investigation on an allegation, and should 
be given the option to review and comment on allegations 
which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss as being 
without merit, vexatious or trivial

 Salford City Council’s arrangements for dealing with allegations of 
breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members require the Monitoring 
Officer to consult with the Independent Person for their views before 
taking a decision (initial assessment) as to whether it should be 
rejected, or it merits investigation or another course of action. 

The Independent Person is also consulted on the findings of any 
investigation before the Monitoring Officer decides on the most 
appropriate course of action.

9 Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of 
misconduct following a formal investigation, a decision notice 
should be published as soon as possible on its website, 
including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code 
engaged by the allegations, the view of the Independent 
Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker and any 
sanction applied

 The GM Chief Legal Officers group will collectively agree on an 
approach and format.

P
age 22



Recommendation Salford City Council draft response

10 A local authority should have straightforward and accessible 
guidance on its website on how to make a complaint under 
the code of conduct, the process for handling complaints and 
estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes

Details of How to complain about a Councillor can be found on the 
Salford City Council website.

This page includes details of what a potential complainant should 
include in a complaint and explains who will see the complaint. It 
includes links to the Code itself and to the Council’s arrangements for 
dealing with allegations of breaches of the Code. 

Complainants are encouraged to complete the embedded online 
complaints form but are advised that we can make reasonable 
adjustments to assist them if they have a disability or if English is not 
their first language.

11 Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish 
councillor towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by 
the parish council as a whole, rather than the clerk in all but 
exceptional circumstances

 N/A in Salford

12 Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, 
support and management of investigations and adjudications 
on alleged breaches to parish councils within the remit of the 
principal authority. They should be provided with adequate 
training, corporate support and resources to undertake this 
work

 N/A in Salford

P
age 23

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/councillors/how-to-complain-about-a-councillor/


Recommendation Salford City Council draft response

13 A local authority should have procedures in place to address 
any conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards 
investigation. Possible steps should include asking the 
Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the 
investigation

This happens as a matter of course but is not currently explicit in our 
procedures.  The GM Chief Legal Officers group will work collectively 
to establish a consistent approach.

14 Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up 
or which they own as part of their annual governance 
statement and give a full picture of their relationship with 
those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities 
should abide by the Nolan principle of openness, and publish 
their board agendas and minutes and annual reports in an 
accessible place

Standards committee members are invited to comment on this 
recommendation in order to assist the Monitoring Officer to formulate 
any corresponding recommendations to the City Mayor.

15 Senior officers should meet regularly with political group 
leaders or group whips to discuss standards issues

 The Monitoring Officer meets regularly with group whips and informs 
them about any allegations received.

P
age 24



Salford City Council

Assessment Criteria checklist for Breaches of Member Code of Conduct 

Before considering the questions below: 

Complaint/File Number: 

Has the member concerned given their views on the complaint? 

Yes   No 

If “Yes” please provide a brief summary of their response 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………….

P
age 25



If “No” why not? 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………

P
age 26



Must be Yes 

Yes No Comment

1. Is the complaint against a Member covered by the Code of Conduct?

2. Was the Member a councillor at the time of the alleged conduct? 

3. Was the Code of Conduct in force at the time of the alleged conduct? 

If the complainant has not been rejected on the grounds above check against the following 

(a) Has the complainant and or Member complained of submitted 
enough information for a decision to be made?   If ‘yes’ go to Q5

(b) If ‘no’ to 4a is it serious enough to warrant seeking additional information?

4.

(c) If “Yes” to 4b what further information is required? 

(a) Does the Subject Member accept that their behaviour fell below the 
expected standard of behaviour? If ‘no’ go to question Q6.

(b) If ‘’yes’ to 5a is an apology acceptable? If ‘no’ continue to Q6

5.

(c) If ‘yes’ to 5 is one forthcoming from the subject Member?  If ‘yes’ go to 
the end, if ‘no’ continue to Q6.

If the complainant has not been rejected on the grounds above check against the following 

Yes No Comment

a) Does the complaint appear to be malicious or politically motivated or 
tit-for-tat?  If ‘no’ go to Q7

6. 

b) If ‘yes’ to Q6 does it still have substance? 

P
age 27



a) Is the allegation anonymous?  If ‘no’ go to Q87.

b) If ‘yes’ to 7a is there evidence that it is exceptionally serious or 
significant and therefore warrants further investigation?

Proportionality – Take a view 

Yes No Comment

(a) Is the complaint really about dissatisfaction with a Council 
decision?  If ‘no’ go to Q9

    

(b) If ‘yes’ to 8a is there also a genuine code of conduct issue? If ‘yes’ 
go to Q9

8.

(c) If ‘no’ to Q8b is there another policy that this is covered by (please 
state)?

(a) Is it a relatively trivial matter & too trivial to warrant further action? 
If ‘yes’ go to end of the form

(b) If ‘no’ to Q9a is it serious enough to justify the range of sanctions 
available?  If ‘yes’ go to Q10

9.

(c) If ‘no’ to Q9b is the matter suitable for other action?  If ‘yes’ please list 
possible action.

10. If the allegation relates to failure to declare disclosable pecuniary 
interests or seeking to obtain an advantage in relation to those 
interests is it in the public interest to refer the matter to the police? 

P
age 28



Proportionality – Take a view 

Yes No Comment

11. If the complaint has already been investigated, is a new investigation 
justified? 

(Has a substantially similar allegation been previously made by the 
complainant to Standards for England, or the Standards Committee, or 
the complaint has been the subject of an investigation by another 
regulatory authority)

(a) Is there a continuing pattern of less serious misconduct, which is 
unreasonably disrupting the business of the Authority or affecting 
others?  If ‘yes’ please describe in the comments column briefly what 
that impact has been.  If ’no’ go to Q13

12.

(b) If ‘yes’ to 12a but limited impact, is an investigation justified? 

(a) Are the events complained about recent or have they recently 
come to light? If ‘no’ go to Q14

(b) If ‘yes’ to 13a would those involved be likely to remember it clearly 
enough to provide credible evidence?   If ‘no’ go to Q14

13.

c) If yes to 13b is there enough benefit in taking action now?  If ‘no’ go to 
end of the form

Having considered the above

Yes No Comment

14. Is investigating the complaint in the public interest, good use of public 
resources and be proportionate? 

15. Any other matter that may be considered relevant 

Issues to take into account if the complaint has requested confidentiality:                               N/A   □

P
age 29



Yes No Comment

16. Does the complainant have reasonable grounds for believing that they 
will be at risk of physical harm if their identity is disclosed? 

17. Is the complainant an officer who works with the subject member and 
are they justifiably afraid of the consequences of losing their job if their 
identity is disclosed? 

18. Does the complainant suffer from a serious health condition and there 
are medical risks associated with their identity being disclosed? Medical 
evidence may be required.

19. If confidentiality is maintained is it possible to investigate the 
complaint? 

20. Does the public interest outweigh the need for confidentiality? 

P
age 30



P
age 31



Has the matter been discussed with an Independent Person?

Yes   No 

(NB. If the matter is to go to investigation the Independent person must be consulted)

If Yes:

 Who? 
…………………………………………………………………………………..........................

 When? 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….

 How? 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………...

What was the view of the Independent Person?
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………..

Page 32



Decision:

Option

1. Take no action as the allegations complained of were not considered to constitute a 
breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct



2. The complaint is not serious enough to merit any action 

3. Seek local resolution and ask the Member to take some action e.g. apology, 
conciliation, attend training etc.



4. The resources needed to investigate and determine the complaint are wholly 
disproportionate to the allegations



5. In all the circumstances there is no overriding public benefit in carrying out an 
investigation



6. Refer to investigation if there is potentially a breach of the code of Conduct 

7. Refer to the police if it is a criminal matter 

Reason for the Decision

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………

Local Resolution to be sought

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME (as at 08 March 2019)

Meeting – 19 March 2019

Item Purpose Author Comments

Annual Report of the Standards  
Committee

To note and review the work undertaken in the 
previous 12 months to deal with complaints received 
and to promote & maintain high standards of conduct 
and to agree whether to present  the report to full 
Council. Includes an overview of the training sessions 
offered to / attended by members over the last 12 
months.

MO

Review of Constitution – verbal 
update

To appraise members of proposed changes to 
relevant sections of the Constitution.

KB

Arrangements for Dealing with 
Allegations of Breaches of the Code 
of Conduct

The council’s first Hearings Panel was held on 28 
February meaning that our arrangements and 
procedures have now been fully tested. Members will 
be invited to feed back their observations and identify 
any areas for improvement.

MO

Recruitment of additional 
Independent Person(s) – verbal 
update

To receive an update on the status of the recruitment 
and selection process

MO

 Local Government Ethical Standards 
– a Review by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life

To receive and discuss the Council’s draft response MO

Standing item – Work programme To review (and amend if necessary) items to be 
considered at future meetings.

CAE

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 9



Meeting – 27 June 2019

Item Purpose Author Comments

Standing Item – Work programme To review (and amend if necessary) items to be 
considered at future meetings.

CAE

Standing item if required – Update 
on ethical governance

To update members on any national issues regarding 
ethical governance which may impact on the Council’s 
arrangements.

MO

P
age 36



Meeting 07 November 2019

Item Purpose Author Comments

Standing item – Work programme To review (and amend if necessary) items to be 
considered at future meetings

CAE

Standing item if required – Update 
on ethical governance

To update members on any national issues regarding 
ethical governance which may impact on the Council’s 
arrangements.

MO

UNSCHEDULED ITEMS

Item Purpose Author Comments

Register of Members’ Interests To review the operation and efficacy of the process 
for updating the Register of Members’ Interests

ML

Dispensations To review the operation and efficacy of the process 
for dealing with requests for dispensations

MO

P
age 37



DOCUMENTS WITHIN THE REMIT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DOCUMENT LAST REVIEWED DATE DUE FOR REVIEW NOTES
Code of Conduct for Members Sept 2017 – Council Based on the model code but 

changes can be made if member 
behaviour/complaints evidence a 
need. 

Arrangements for dealing with allegations of 
breaches of Code, incl:

- Summary of arrangements
- Flow chart
- Assessment criteria checklist
- Guidance on investigation
- Intro to hearing procedures
- Pre-hearing process
- Hearing process
- Protocol for hearing panels
- Questions to be considered by 

hearing panels

Apr 2018 – Standards Cttee tbc

Policy on Management of Unreasonable 
Complainant Behaviour

Apr 2018 – Standards Cttee tbc

Member/Officer Relations protocol Sept 2017 – Council March 2019 - provisional Part of Constitution which is due for 
review imminently

Use of Council Resources – guidance for 
members – in Code of Conduct

Sept 2017 – Council March 2019 - provisional Part of Constitution which is due for 
review imminently

Social media – guidance for members 2014, forms part of annual 
member training on Code 
of Conduct

Currently under review in Comms 
team

Register of Members’ Interests Intranet updated as 
required

6mthly reminders sent to members

Register of Gifts & Hospitality Intranet updated as 
required

6mthly reminders sent to members

Gifts & hospitality – guidance for members Forms part of annual 
member training on Code 
of Conduct

P
age 38



DOCUMENTS OF INTEREST TO STANDARDS COMMITTEE - LEAD TAKEN BY OTHER COMMITTEES

DOCUMENT LEAD COMMITTEE LAST REVIEWED NEXT REVIEW DATE NOTES
Code of Corporate Governance Audit & Accounts May 2018 March - May 2019 Review initiated by officer Corporate 

Governance Group
Annual Governance Statement Audit & Accounts May 2018  March - May 2019 Review initiated by officer Corporate 

Governance Group
Whistleblowing Policy Audit & Accounts Oct 2016 Oct 2018

Code of Conduct for Employees Workforce Panel Sept 2017 March 2019 Prov Part of Constitution which is due for 
review imminently

Planning Protocol for Members and 
Officers

Planning Panel Sept 2017 March 2019 Prov Part of Constitution which is due for 
review imminently

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8 November 2018
	4 Annual Report of the Standards Committee
	5 Council's Draft Response to the Best Practice Recommendations from a Review by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
	05 - App 1 - Table of CSPL Best Practice Recommendations

	9 Work Programme

